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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

VAA LCO ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except number of shares and par value amounts)

September 30, December 31,
2016 2015

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,883 $ 25,357 
Restricted cash 788 1,048 
Receivables:

Trade 5,940 5,353 
Accounts with partners 1,639 19,765 
Other 36 42 

Crude oil inventory 770 639 
Materials and supplies 145 194 
Prepayments and other 3,602 2,975 
Current assets - discontinued operations 1,747 8,369 

Total current assets 41,550 63,742 
Property and equipment - successful efforts method:

Wells, platforms and other production facilities 410,301 412,593 
Undeveloped acreage 10,000 10,000 
Equipment and other 10,357 10,805 

430,658 433,398 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment (405,080) (400,041)

Net property and equipment 25,578 33,357 
Other noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash 830 15,830 
Value added tax and other receivables, net of allowance of $4.9 million 
and $4.2 million at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 5,107 4,221 
Deferred finance charge  - 1,655 
Abandonment funding 5,137 5,137 
Noncurrent assets - discontinued operations  - 16 

Total assets $ 78,202 $ 123,958 

LIABILITIES AND  SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 11,553 $ 44,140 
Accrued liabilities and other 13,551 18,447 
Current portion of long term debt 6,250  -
Current liabilities - discontinued operations 18,656 4,129 

Total current liabilities 50,010 66,716 
Asset retirement obligations 16,849 16,166 
Long term debt, excluding current portion 8,134 15,000 

Total liabilities 74,993 97,882 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, none issued, 500,000 shares authorized, $25 par value  -  -
Common stock, 66,189,032 and  66,041,338 shares issued 
$0.10 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized 6,619 6,604 
Additional paid-in capital 70,210 69,118 
Less treasury stock, 7,555,095 and 7,514,169 shares at cost (37,933) (37,882)
Accumulated deficit (35,687) (11,764)

Total shareholders' equity 3,209 26,076 
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 78,202 $ 123,958 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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VA ALCO ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015

Revenues:
Oil and natural gas sales $ 14,635 $ 17,546 $ 44,458 $ 62,922 

Operating costs and expenses:
Production expense 7,162 7,859 25,756 26,637 
Exploration expense 2 8,975 4 9,701 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,607 8,256 5,787 23,484 
General and administrative expense 2,420 2,669 8,853 9,379 
Impairment of proved properties 88 17,988 88 29,208 
Other operating expense 324  - 9,959  -
General and administrative related
to shareholder matters 85  - (350)  -
Bad debt expense and other 63 2,750 577 3,326 

Total operating costs and expenses 11,751 48,497 50,674 101,735 
Other operating income (loss), net (26)  - (8) 398 

Operating income (loss) 2,858 (30,951) (6,224) (38,415)
Other income (expense):

Interest income 1 3 2 12 
Interest expense (328) (465) (2,287) (1,119)
Other, net (149) (401) (533) (179)

Total other income (expense) (476) (863) (2,818) (1,286)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 2,382 (31,814) (9,042) (39,701)
Income tax expense 2,198 2,707 6,884 10,345 
Income (loss) from continuing operations 184 (34,521) (15,926) (50,046)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax (15,783) 853 (7,997) (27,831)
Net loss $ (15,599) $ (33,668) $ (23,923) $ (77,877)

Basic net loss per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.00 $ (0.59) $ (0.27) $ (0.86)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.27) 0.01 (0.14) (0.48)
Net loss $ (0.27) $ (0.58) $ (0.41) $ (1.34)

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 58,708 58,392 58,600 58,227 
Diluted net loss per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.00 $ (0.59) $ (0.27) $ (0.86)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.27) 0.01 (0.14) (0.48)

Net loss $ (0.27) $ (0.58) $ (0.41) $ (1.34)
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 58,708 58,392 58,600 58,227 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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VA ALCO ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss from continuing operations $ (15,926) $ (50,046)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 5,787 23,484 
Amortization of debt issuance cost 1,132 473 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 2,175 (2,181)
Dry hole costs and impairment of unproved leasehold  - 9,602 
Stock-based compensation 1,107 3,024 
Commodity derivatives loss 772  -
Bad debt provision 577 2,750 
Other operating (income) loss, net 8 (398)
Impairment of proved properties 88 29,208 
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade receivables (587) 12,543 
Accounts with partners 18,126 (4,658)
Other receivables 12 (3,191)
Crude oil inventory (131) 948 
Materials and supplies 49 54 
Value added tax and other receivables (1,526)  -
Prepayments and other (552) 1,145 
Accounts payable (24,339) 18,730 
Accrued liabilities and other 24 (2,671)

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operating activities (13,204) 38,816 
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operating activities 13,168 (1,297)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (36) 37,519 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in restricted cash 15,260 5,512 
Property and equipment expenditures (12,781) (53,276)
Proceeds from sales of oil and gas properties  - 398 
Other, net (824)  -

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,655 (47,366)
Net cash provided by discontinued investing activities  - (18,955)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,655 (66,321)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuances of common stock  - 452 
Debt issuance costs (93)  -

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (93) 452 
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,526 (28,350)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 25,357 69,051 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 26,883 $ 40,701 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid, net of capitalized interest $ 1,046 $ 1,119 
Income Taxes paid $ 6,930 $ 10,299 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Property and equipment additions incurred but not paid at period end $ 1,990 $ 18,097 
Asset retirement cost capitalized $ 42 $ 816 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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VAALCO ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

   1.  ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING  POLICIES 

VAALCO Energy, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (“VAALCO” or the “Company”) is a Houston-based independent energy company principally
engaged in the acquisition, exploration, development and production of crude oil and natural gas. As operator, we have production operations and conduct
exploration activities in Gabon, West Africa. As non-operator, we participate in exploration and development activities in Equatorial Guinea, West Africa. In
the United States, VAALCO is the operator of two unconventional wells in North Texas and holds undeveloped leasehold acreage in Montana. We also own
some minor interests in conventional production activities as a non-operator in the United States. As discussed further in Note 4 below, we have discontinued
operations associated with our activities in Angola, West Africa.

Our consolidated subsidiaries are VAALCO Gabon (Etame), Inc., VAALCO Production (Gabon), Inc., VAALCO Gabon S.A., VAALCO Angola (Kwanza),
Inc., VAALCO UK (North Sea), Ltd., VAALCO International, Inc., VAALCO Energy (EG), Inc., VAALCO Energy Mauritius (EG) Limited and VAALCO
Energy (USA), Inc.

These condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited, but in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of
results for the interim periods presented. All adjustments are of a normal recurring nature unless disclosed otherwise. Interim period results are not necessarily
indicative of results to be expected for the full year.

These condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and do
not include all the information and disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) for complete financial
statements. They should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2015, which include a summary of the significant accounting policies.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to the current period presentation. These reclassifications did not affect our
consolidated financial results.

Correction of error – Accounts with partners and allowance for bad debts – Subsequent to the issuance of our 2015 financial statements, we identified an
error in the presentation on our consolidated balance sheet of the accounts with partners and the associated allowance for bad debts. These accounts
incorrectly included a fully reserved receivable of $7.6 million which should have been charged off against the reserve in 2012 when efforts to collect from a
removed partner were no longer viable and had been abandoned.  To correct this error, we removed the reference to the $7.6 million allowance from the
caption. This correction had no impact on our consolidated balance sheet or the consolidated results of operations.

Bad debt – Quarterly, we evaluate our accounts receivable balances to confirm collectability. When collectability is in doubt, we record an allowance against
the accounts receivable and a corresponding income charge for bad debts, which appears in the “Bad debt expense (recovery) and other” line of our
condensed consolidated statements of operations. The majority of our accounts receivable balances are with our joint venture partners, purchasers of our
production and the government of Gabon for reimbursable Value-Added Tax (“VAT”). Collection efforts, including remedies provided for in the contracts, are
pursued to collect overdue amounts owed to us. 

In the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, we increased the allowance related to VAT due from Gabon by $0.1 million and $0.6 million,
respectively. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015 we recorded an allowance of $2.8 million related to the VAT receivable due from
Gabon.  In June 2016, we entered into an agreement with the government of Gabon to receive payments related to the outstanding VAT receivable balance as
of December 31, 2015 in thirty-six monthly installments of $0.2 million net to VAALCO. We received one monthly installment payment in July 2016;
however, no further payments have been received. The Gabonese government has informed us that they do not expect to make any further payments until
early 2017 due to liquidity constraints.

General and administrative related to shareholder matters – During the third quarter of 2015, a shareholder group consisting of Group 42, Inc., Bradley L.
Radoff and certain other participants (collectively, the "Group 42-BLR Group") attempted to gain control of our Board of Directors. In December 2015, we
reached an agreement with the Group 42-BLR Group that included changes to the composition of the Board of Directors and other actions. In connection with
this agreement, we reimbursed the Group 42-BLR Group for $350,000 of its legal expenses. Related shareholder litigation filed in Delaware was dismissed by
the Delaware Chancery Court on April 20, 2016. See Note 7 below for further discussion of the litigation. 

2.  LIQUIDITY AND GOING CONCERN

Our revenues, cash flows, profitability, oil and natural gas reserve values and future rates of growth are substantially dependent upon prevailing prices for oil
and natural gas. Our ability to borrow funds and to obtain additional capital on attractive terms is also substantially dependent on oil and natural gas prices.
Historically, world-wide oil and natural gas prices and markets have been volatile, and will likely continue to be volatile. In particular, the prices of oil and
natural gas declined dramatically in the second half

6

 



Table of Contents
 

of 2014 and remained low, decreasing further in 2015 and early 2016. Revenues have increased from $11.0 million in the first quarter 2016 to $14.6 million
in the third quarter of 2016 primarily as a result of improving prices. 

As discussed in Note 6 below,  in June 2016, we modified our revolving credit facility with the International Finance Corporation (the “IFC”) converting $20
million of our revolving credit facility into a term loan with $15 million borrowed and the option to request an additional $5 million in a single draw between
now and December 31, 2016, subject to the IFC’s approval. Our available liquidity, therefore, continues to be limited.  

If we fail to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness or trade payables, or fail to comply with the financial and other restrictive covenants
contained in our amended loan agreement with the IFC, an event of default under the amended loan agreement and acceleration of our term loan debt and
other indebtedness could result,  which could permit the IFC to foreclose on any of our assets securing that debt. Any accelerated debt would become
immediately due and payable. As discussed in Note 6 below,  certain of our financial covenants under the amended loan agreement have been relaxed through
the end of 2016.

During the third quarter of 2016, we received notice from the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) that our stock had fallen below the minimum listing
standards which requires that the average closing price of our common stock be not less than $1.00 per share for a period of over 30 consecutive trading
days.  We are considering various options to come into compliance with this requirement; however, should the delisting occur, it could cause additional
difficulties in accessing the capital markets.

If oil and natural gas prices continue at levels seen in the second and third quarters of 2016, we expect that for the remainder of 2016 through the end of 2017
we will generate cash flows sufficient to cover our operating expenses. However, an unfavorable resolution of current obligations or depressed oil and natural
gas prices, like those seen in the first quarter of 2016,  would have a material adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition, results of operations and on
the carrying value of our proved oil and natural gas properties. To fund potential growth opportunities going forward, we are considering multiple alternatives,
including, but not limited to, additional debt or equity financing through traditional sources or strategic partnerships. There can be no guarantee of future
capital acquisition or fundraising success. Our current cash position and our ability to access additional capital may limit our available opportunities and not
provide sufficient cash to support our operations.  These conditions continue to raise doubts about our ability to continue as a going concern. 

Our financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should we be
unable to continue as a going concern.

3.  NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Not yet adopted

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of
Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (“ASU 2016-15”) related to how certain cash receipts and payments are presented and classified in the statement of
cash flows. These cash flow issues include debt prepayment or extinguishment costs, settlement of zero-coupon debt, contingent consideration payments made
after a business combination, proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims, distributions received from equity method investees, beneficial interests in
securitization transactions, and separately identifiable cash flows. ASU 2016-15 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the provisions of this guidance and are assessing its potential impact on our cash flows and
related disclosures. Due to the nature of this accounting standards update,  this may have an impact on items reported in our statements of cash flows, but no
impact is expected on our financial position, results of operations or related disclosures as a result of implementation.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”) related to the calculation of credit losses on financial instruments. All financial instruments not accounted for at fair value will
be impacted, including our trade and partner receivables. Allowances are to be measured using a current expected credit loss model as of the reporting date
which is based on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. This is significantly different from the current model
which increases the allowance when losses are probable. This change is effective for all public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2019,
including interim periods within those fiscal years and will be applied with a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first
reporting period in which the guidance is effective. We are currently evaluating the provisions of ASU 2016-13 and are assessing its potential impact on our
financial position, results of operations, cash flows and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting (“ASU 2016-09”) that changes several aspects of accounting for share-based payment transactions, including a requirement to recognize all
excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies as income tax expense or benefit in the income statement, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and
classification on the statements of cash flows. This standard is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 31, 2016, with early adoption permitted. Varying transition methods (modified retrospective, retrospective or prospective) are applicable to
different provisions of
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the standard. We are in the process of evaluating all changes, both required and elective, and are developing implementation plans for each as appropriate;
however, we do not expect any of the changes to have a significant impact on our financial position, results of operations, cash flows or related disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”), which amended the accounting standards for leases.  ASU
2016-02 retains a distinction between finance leases and operating leases. The primary change is the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees
for those leases classified as operating leases on the balance sheet. The classification criteria for distinguishing between finance leases and operating leases are
substantially similar to the classification criteria for distinguishing between capital leases and operating leases in the previous guidance. Certain aspects of
lease accounting have been simplified. Additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures are required along with specific quantitative disclosures required by
lessees and lessors to meet the objective of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from
leases. In transition, lessees and lessors are required to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest period presented using a modified
retrospective approach. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years,
with early application permitted. We are currently evaluating the provisions of this update and are assessing the potential impact on our financial position,
results of operations, cash flows and related disclosures. 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (“ASU 2014-09”), which revised guidance on
revenue from contracts with customers that will supersede most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The core principle
of the new revenue model is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new standard provides a five-step approach to
determine when and how revenue is recognized. The guidance permits the use of either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach to adoption.
In July 2015, the FASB approved a one-year deferral of the effective date of ASU 2014-09 to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 for
public companies. The FASB approved early adoption of the standard, but not before the original effective date of annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016. Since May 2014, several additional accounting standards updates have been issued by FASB to clarify implementation issues. We
continue to evaluate the impact of this revised guidance and the several clarifications that have been issued since. We have not yet quantified the impact, if
any, of this amended guidance on our financial position, results of operations, cash flows and related disclosures.

Adopted

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest – Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs
(ASU 2015-03) that requires the presentation of debt issuance costs in financial statements as a direct reduction of the related debt liabilities, with
amortization of debt issuance costs reported as interest expense. Under prior GAAP, debt issuance costs were reported as deferred charges (i.e., as an asset).
We adopted ASU 2015-03 in the first quarter of 2016. As discussed in Note 6 below, in the second quarter of 2016, our loan agreement was modified into a
term loan. At that time, a portion of deferred debt issuance costs related to the revolving credit facility were charged to expense. The remaining unamortized
deferred financing costs plus the incremental costs of converting the revolver into a term loan are presented as a direct reduction of Long-term debt on
our condensed consolidated balance sheet.

4.  AQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Sojitz Acquisition

On July 28, 2016, we signed a purchase and sale agreement to acquire an additional 2.98% working interest (3.23% participating interest) in the Etame Marin
block located offshore the Republic of Gabon from Sojitz Etame Limited (“Sojitz”), which represents all interest owned by Sojitz in the concession. The
acquisition has an effective date of August 1, 2016, and closing is expected by December 31, 2016, subject to customary closing conditions. Payment for the
acquisition is expected to be primarily funded by cash on hand; however, we intend to issue a request to the IFC to borrow the $5.0 million potentially
available under the Additional Term Loan. Completion of the transaction is not contingent on obtaining approval of our request.

Sale of Certain U.S. Properties

On September 21, 2016, we signed a letter of intent to sell our interests in two wells in the Hefley field in North Texas for $850,000. We expect this
transaction to be concluded during the fourth quarter of 2016. On October 17, 2016, we signed a letter of intent to sell our interests in the East Poplar Dome
field in Montana for $250,000. We expect this transaction to be concluded during the fourth quarter of 2016. Based on the net book value for these assets as of
September 30, 2016, we expect any gain/loss to be insignificant.
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Discontinued Operations - Angola

In November 2006, we signed a production sharing contract for Block 5 offshore Angola. The four year primary term, with an optional three year extension,
awarded us exploration rights to 1.4 million acres offshore central Angola, with a commitment to drill two exploratory wells. In October 2014, we entered
into the Subsequent Exploration Phase (“SEP”) which extended the exploration period to November 30, 2017 and required us and our partner to drill two
additional exploration wells. Our working interest is 40% and we carry the Angolan national oil company, Sonangol P&P, for 10% of the work program. On
September 30, 2016, we notified Sonangol P&P, our joint venture partner, that we were withdrawing from the joint operating agreement effective October 31,
2016. Further to our decision to withdraw from Angola, we have taken actions to begin closing our office in Angola and do not intend to conduct future
activities in Angola. As a result of this strategic shift, as of September 30, 2016, the Angola segment met all the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale;
therefore, we classified all the related assets and liabilities as those of discontinued operations in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The operating
results of the Angola segment have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in our condensed consolidated statements of
operations. We segregated the cash flows attributable to the Angola segment from the cash flows from continuing operations for all periods presented in our
condensed consolidated statements of cash flows. The following tables summarize selected financial information related to the Angola segment’s operations
as of September 30, 2016 and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015.

Summarized Results of Discontinued Operations

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Operating costs and expenses:

Exploration expense $ 15,269 $ 32 $ 15,270 $ 27,878 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 3 3 9 9 
General and administrative expense 400 1,135 994 2,127 
Bad debt expense (recovery) and other  -  - (7,629)  -

Total operating costs and expenses 15,672 1,170 8,644 30,014 
Other operating income (loss), net (7)  - (28)  -

Operating income (loss) (15,679) (1,170) (8,672) (30,014)
Other income:

Interest income  -  - 3,201  -
Other, net 6 2,023 551 2,183 

Total other income 6 2,023 3,752 2,183 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes (15,673) 853 (4,920) (27,831)
Income tax expense 110  - 3,077  -
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (15,783) $ 853 $ (7,997) $ (27,831)

Assets and Liabilities Attributable to Discontinued Operations

September 30, December 31,

2016 2015
ASSETS
Current assets:

Accounts with partners $ 1,723 $ 8,091 
Prepayments and other 24 278 

Total current assets 1,747 8,369 
Property and equipment - successful efforts method:

Equipment and other  - 143 
 - 143 

Accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment  - (127)
Net property and equipment  - 16 

Total assets $ 1,747 $ 8,385 

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 104 $ 2,708 
Foreign taxes payable 3,077  -
Accrued liabilities and other 15,475 1,421 

Total current liabilities
$ 18,656 $ 4,129 
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Drilling Obligation

Under the production sharing agreement for Block 5, we and our working interest partner, Sonangol P&P, were obligated to perform exploration activities in
Angola that would result in drilling or commencing four wells by November 30, 2017. With the drilling of the Kindele #1 in 2015, the obligation was reduced
to three wells. Under the contract, VAALCO is required to pay a $5.0 million penalty for each of the three wells not completed; however, the penalty amounts
can be reduced by exploration expenses incurred. Prior to the September 30, 2016 quarterly reporting period, we classified the $15.0 million commitment for
drilling these wells as long term restricted cash on our balance sheet. As a result of our decision to terminate the contract, we are no longer reflecting the $15.0
million as restricted cash. We believe that a substantial portion of the penalty amount has been reduced due to exploration expenditures made. Support for our
determination is being presented to Angola government authorities, and we anticipate further discussions on this matter. However, due to the uncertainties as
to the ultimate outcome, we have accrued a $15.0 million liability for the penalty which represents what we believe to be the maximum potential amount due
under the agreement.

Other Matters – Partner Receivable

The government-assigned working interest partner was delinquent in paying their share of the costs several times in 2009 and was removed from the
production sharing contract in 2010 by a governmental decree. Efforts to collect from the defaulted partner were abandoned in 2012. The available 40%
working interest in Block 5, offshore Angola was assigned to Sonangol P&P effective on January 1, 2014. We invoiced Sonangol P&P for the unpaid
delinquent amounts from the defaulted partner plus the amounts incurred during the period prior to assignment of the working interest totaling $7.6 million
plus interest in April 2014. Because this amount was not paid and Sonangol P&P was slow in paying monthly cash call invoices since their assignment, we
placed Sonangol P&P in default in the first quarter of 2015.

On March 14, 2016, we received a $19.0 million payment from Sonangol P&P for the full amount owed us as of December 31, 2015, including the $7.6
million of pre-assignment costs and default interest of $3.2 million. The $7.6 million recovery is reflected in the “Bad debt expense (recovery) and other” line
of our summarized results of discontinued operations. Default interest of $3.2 million is shown in the “Interest income” line of our summarized results of
discontinued operations.

5.  OIL AND NATURAL GAS PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

We review our oil and natural gas producing properties for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such
properties may not be recoverable. When an oil and natural gas property’s undiscounted estimated future net cash flows are not sufficient to recover its
carrying amount, an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair value. The fair value of the asset is measured using a
discounted cash flow model relying primarily on Level 3 inputs into the undiscounted future net cash flows. The undiscounted estimated future net cash flows
used in our impairment evaluations at each quarter end are based upon the most recently prepared independent reserve engineers’ report adjusted to use
forecasted prices from the forward strip price curves near each quarter end and adjusted as necessary for drilling and production results.

During the third quarter of 2016, our negative price differential to Brent narrowed and we incurred no significant capital spending.  We considered these and
other factors and determined that there were no events or circumstances triggering an impairment evaluation for most of our fields, with the exception of the
Avouma field in the Etame Marine block offshore Gabon. Recently, at the Avouma field, the electrical submersible pumps (“ESPs”) in the South Tchibala 2-
H well and the Avouma 2-H well failed, and these wells are temporarily shut-in. Workovers are being planned to replace the ESPs and bring the wells back on
production by late in the fourth quarter 2016. The reserves used in our impairment evaluation of the Avouma field were revised to reflect the impact of this
lost production for several months and the impact of the forward price curve. The undiscounted future net cash flows for the Avouma field were in excess of
the field’s carrying value. No impairment was required for the Avouma field, or any of our other fields in Gabon, for the third quarter of 2016.

As a result of the letter of intent signed to sell our interests in the two wells in North Texas for $850,000, we performed an impairment test and determined
that a $0.1 million impairment was required.

Declining forecasted oil prices in 2015 caused us to perform impairment reviews of our proved properties in each quarter of 2015 and 2016 for all fields in the
Etame Marin block offshore Gabon and the Hefley field in North Texas. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015, impairments of proved
properties of $18.0 million and $29.2 million were recorded. 

6.  DEBT

On June 29, 2016, we executed a Supplemental Agreement with the IFC which, among other things, amended and restated our existing loan agreement to
convert $20 million of the revolving portion of the credit facility, to a term loan (the “Term Loan”) with $15 million outstanding and an additional $5 million
(the “Additional Term Loan”), which can be requested in a single draw, subject to the IFC’s approval, between now and December 31, 2016. The amended
loan agreement is secured by the assets of our Gabon subsidiary, VAALCO Gabon (Etame), Inc. and is guaranteed by VAALCO as the parent company .
Before we are able to draw the Additional Term Loan, the IFC, as part of their consideration of our loan request, will make a determination of whether our
Gabon subsidiary’s current and projected revenues from operations are sufficient to cover the aggregate amount of principal, interest, commissions, fees and
any other amounts due in respect of the Additional Term Loan. If drawn, the Additional Term Loan amount shall be amortized in equal quarterly installments
through June 30, 2018. The amended loan agreement provides for quarterly principal and interest payments on
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the amounts currently outstanding through June 30, 2019, with interest accruing at a rate of LIBOR plus 5.75%; however, p rincipal repayments under the
amended loan agreement are dependent upon the timing of our additional borrowing, if any, with the payments to commence  on either December 31, 2016 or
March 31, 2017. If we do not borrow under the Additional Term Loan before December 15, 2016, no principal payments are due until March 31, 2017.

Compared to the $15.0 million carrying value of debt, the estimated fair value of the term loan is $15.0 million when measured using a discounted cash flow
model over the life of the current borrowings at forecasted interest rates. The inputs to this model are Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Covenants

Under the amended loan agreement, quarter-end net debt to EBITDAX (as defined in the loan agreement) must be no more than 3.0 to 1.0. However, the
quarter-end net debt to EBITDAX limitation has been raised to 5.0 to 1.0 for all periods through the end of 2016. Additionally, our debt service coverage
ratio must be greater than 1.2 to 1.0 at each quarter end.  Forecasting our compliance with these and other financial covenants in future periods is inherently
uncertain; therefore, we can make no assurance that we will be able to comply with our term loan covenants in future periods. Factors that could impact our
quarter-end financial covenants in future periods include future realized prices for sales of oil and natural gas, estimated future production, returns generated
by our capital program, and future interest costs, among others. We were in compliance with all financial covenants as of September 30, 2016.

Interest 

Until June 29, 2016, under the terms of the original revolving credit facility, we paid commitment fees on the undrawn portion of the total
commitment. Commitment fees were equal to 1.5% of the unused balance of the senior tranche of $50.0 million and 2.3% of the unused balance of the
subordinated tranche of $15.0 million when a commitment was available for utilization. Subsequent to June 29, 2016 through December 31, 2016,
commitment fees are 2.3% of the undrawn Additional Term Loan of $5 million.

We capitalize interest and commitment fees related to expenditures made in connection with exploration and development projects that are not subject to
current depletion. Interest and commitment fees are capitalized only for the period that activities are in progress to bring these projects to their intended use.

The table below shows the components of the Interest expense line of our condensed consolidated statements of operations and the average effective interest
rate, excluding commitment fees, on our borrowings:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015

(in thousands)

Interest incurred, including commitment fees $ 274 $ 377 $ 1,047 $ 1,117 
Deferred finance cost amortization 56 162 262 475 
Deferred finance cost write-off due to loan modification  -  - 869  -
Capitalized interest  - (242)  - (748)
Other interest not related to debt (2) 168 109 275 
Interest expense $ 328 $ 465 $ 2,287 $ 1,119 

Average effective interest rate, excluding commitment fees 6.38% 4.03% 5.04% 4.02% 

7.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Gusinsky litigation

On December 7, 2015, Plaintiff Vladimir Gusinsky Living Trust filed a stockholder class action lawsuit in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (the
“Court”) against the Company and all of its directors alleging that certain provisions of the Company’s Restated Charter and Second Amended and Restated
Bylaws that restricted the removal of its directors to removal for cause only (the “director removal provisions”) were invalid as a matter of Delaware law.
Plaintiff George Shapiro also filed a similar stockholder class action lawsuit in the Court on December 7, 2015. Thereafter, the plaintiffs agreed to the
consolidation of their cases (the “Consolidated Case”).

After a hearing on the Consolidated Case on December 21, 2015, Vice Chancellor Laster issued an opinion in In re VAALCO Energy, Inc. Stockholder
Litigation, Consol. C.A. No. 11775-VCL holding that, in the absence of a classified board or cumulative voting, the director removal provisions conflicted
with Section 141(k) of the Delaware General Corporation Law and are therefore invalid.
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On April 20, 2016, the Court approved a Stipulation and Order of Dismissal entered into by the parties in the Consolidated Case. We agreed to settle
plaintiffs’ application for an award of attorneys’ fees and expenses totaling $775,000 due to the costs of defense of that application and the litigation risk
associated therewith, all of which were covered by our directors and officers insurance as a covered claim.

Butcher settlement

On October 3, 2016, the Court approved a Stipulation and Order of Dismissal entered into by the parties in a stockholder class action lawsuit against the
Company and all of its directors alleging that a previously terminated shareholder rights agreement, no longer in effect, and certain provisions of the former
CEO’s and former CFO’s employment agreements securing change-in-control severance benefits were invalid under Delaware law, case number C.A. No.
12277-VCL, filed on April 29, 2016,  in the Court. After the Company and its directors moved to dismiss the lawsuit, the Plaintiff Daniel Butcher agreed to
dismiss the lawsuit as moot, and the Company agreed to settle Plaintiff’s application for an award of attorneys’ fees, which it expects its insurer to pay, due to
the anticipated costs of continuing to prosecute the motion to dismiss and defending the Plaintiff’s fee application, as well as the litigation risk associated
therewith. 

Rig commitment

In 2014, we entered into a long-term contract for a jackup drilling rig for the multi-well development drilling campaign offshore Gabon. The campaign
included the drilling of development wells and workovers of existing wells in the Etame Marin block. We began demobilization in January 2016 and released
the drilling rig in February 2016, prior to the original July 2016 contract termination date, because we no longer intended to drill any wells in 2016 on our
Etame Marin block offshore Gabon. In June 2016, we reached an agreement with the drilling contractor to pay $5.1 million net to VAALCO’s interest for
unused rig days under the contract. We are paying this amount, plus the demobilization charges, in seven equal monthly installments which began in July
2016. As of September 30, 2016, the remaining amount to pay was $3.6 million net to VAALCO’s interest. The related expense is reported in the “Other
operating expense” line of our condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Gabon

Offshore

Abandonment

We have an agreed cash funding arrangement for the eventual abandonment of all offshore wells, platforms and facilities on the Etame Marin Block. Based
upon the abandonment study completed in January 2016, the abandonment cost estimate used for this purpose is approximately $61.1 million ($17.3 million
net to VAALCO) on an undiscounted basis. The obligation for abandonment of the Gabon offshore facilities is included in the “Asset retirement obligations”
line on our condensed consolidated balance sheet. Through December 31, 2015, $18.3 million ($5.1 million net to VAALCO) on an undiscounted basis has
been funded, with the next funding of $9.1 million  ($2.6 million net to VAALCO) expected to be required sometime later in 2016. This cash funding is
reflected under “Other noncurrent assets” as “Abandonment funding” on our condensed consolidated balance sheet. Future changes to the anticipated
abandonment cost estimate could change our asset retirement obligation and the amount of future abandonment funding payments.

Audits

We are subject to periodic routine audits by various government agencies in Gabon, including audits of our petroleum cost account, customs, taxes and other
operational matters, as well as audits by other members of the contractor group under our joint operating agreements.

In October 2014, we received a provisional audit report related to the Etame Marin block operations from the Gabon Taxation Department as part of a special
industry-wide audit of business practices and financial transactions in the Republic of Gabon.  In November 2014, we responded to the Gabon Taxation
Department requesting joint meetings to advance the resolution of this matter and later provided a formal reply to the provisional audit report in February
2015. A final agreement was reached with the Gabon Taxation Department in October 2016.  During 2015, we accrued an estimated settlement of $0.3
million net to VAALCO based upon preliminary negotiations and expect to pay this amount in November 2016 in accordance with the final settlement
agreement.

As of September 30, 2016, we had accrued $2.2 million net to VAALCO in “Accrued liabilities and other” on our condensed consolidated balance sheet for
certain payroll taxes in Gabon which were not paid pertaining to labor provided to us over a number of years by a third-party contractor. While the payroll
taxes were for individuals who were not our employees, we could be deemed liable for these expenses as the end user of the services provided. A process of
negotiation with government payroll agencies in Gabon is underway to resolve this matter.

8. DERIVATIVES AND FAIR VALUE

In April 2016, we entered into put contracts on 36,000 barrels of oil per month for the period from June 2016 through February 2017 at Dated Brent of $40
per barrel. This volume represents approximately one-third of our total forecasted sales volumes for the period. While these crude oil puts are intended to be
an economic hedge to mitigate the impact of a decline in oil prices, we have not elected hedge accounting. The contracts will be measured at fair value each
period, with changes in fair value recognized in net income. We do not enter into derivative instruments for speculative or trading proposes.
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Our put contracts are subject to agreements similar to a master netting agreement under which we have the legal right to offset assets and liabilities. At
September 30, 2016, all of the put contracts were assets.

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy and location on our condensed consolidated balance sheets, the reported values of
derivative instruments accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis:

  Balance at September 30, 2016

  Carrying Fair Value Measurements Using
Derivative Item Balance Sheet Line Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in thousands)

Crude oil puts Prepayments and other $  70 
$
  -

$
 70 

$
  -

We had neither derivative instruments outstanding as of December 31, 2015 nor derivative instrument activity during 2015. 

The crude oil put contracts are measured at fair value using the Black’s option pricing model. Level 2 observable inputs used in the valuation model include
market information as of the reporting date, such as prevailing Brent crude futures prices, Brent crude futures commodity price volatility and interest
rates.  The determination of the put contract fair value includes the impact of the counterparty’s non-performance risk. 

To mitigate counterparty risk, we enter into such derivative contracts with creditworthy financial institutions deemed by management as competent and
competitive market makers.

The following table sets forth the effect of derivative instruments on our condensed consolidated statements of operations:

Gain (Loss)
Derivative Item Statement of Operations Line Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
(in thousands)

Crude oil puts Other, net $ (194) $  - $ (772) $  -

9.  COMPENSATION

Stock options

Stock options are granted under our long-term incentive plan and have an exercise price that may not be less than the fair market value of the underlying
shares on the date of grant. Stock options granted to participants will become exercisable over a period determined by the Compensation Committee of our
Board of Directors, which in the past has been a five year life, with the options vesting over a service period of up to five years. In addition, stock options will
become exercisable upon a change in control, unless provided otherwise by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors. A portion of the stock
options granted in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 were vested immediately with the remainder vesting over a two year period.

Stock option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 is provided below:

Number of Weighted
Shares Average

Underlying Exercise Price
Options Per Share

(in thousands)

Outstanding at January 1, 2016 4,144 $       6.41
Granted 1,519 1.16 
Forfeited/expired (2,399) 5.53 

Outstanding at September 30, 2016 3,264 4.61 
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Common and restricted shares

Shares of restricted stock may be granted under our long-term incentive plan and related compensation expense is recorded using the fair market value of the
underlying shares on the date of grant. Restricted stock granted to employees will vest over a period determined by the Compensation Committee which is
generally a three year period, vesting in three equal parts on the first three anniversaries of the date of the grant. Share grants to directors vest immediately and
are not restricted.

Weighted
Number Average
of Shares Grant Price

Non-vested shares outstanding at January 1, 2016 419,888 $       3.83
Awards granted 357,145 1.12 
Awards vested (488,115) 2.05 
Awards forfeited (209,451) 3.89 

Non-vested shares outstanding at September 30, 2016 79,467 2.42 

In the three months ended March 31, 2016, 31,808 shares were added to treasury due to tax withholding on vesting restricted shares.  No shares were added to
treasury in the second and third quarters of 2016.

Stock appreciation rights

Stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) are granted under the VAALCO Energy, Inc. 2016 Stock Appreciation Rights Plan. A SAR is the right to receive a cash
amount equal to the spread with respect to a share of common stock upon the exercise of the SAR.  The spread is the difference between the SAR price per
share specified in a SAR award on the date of grant (which may not be less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant) and the fair
market value per share on the date of exercise of the SAR. SARs granted to participants will become exercisable over a period determined by the
Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors. In addition, SARs will become exercisable upon a change in control, unless provided otherwise by the
Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors. The 815,355 SARs granted in the three months ended March 31, 2016 vest over a three year period with
a life of 5 years and have a maximum spread of 300% of the $1.04 SAR price per share specified in a SAR award on the date of grant. Compensation payable
related to these awards through September 30, 2016 is not significant.

Compensation expense

We record non-cash compensation expense related to stock-based compensation in the “General and administrative” expense line of our condensed
consolidated statements of operations. Non-cash compensation expense related to stock options, SARs, common stock and restricted stock was ($0.5) million
and $1.1 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and was $0.7 million and $3.0 million for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2015. Because we do not pay significant United States federal income taxes, no amounts were recorded for tax benefits.

10. INCOME TAXES

VAALCO and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated United States income tax return. Certain subsidiaries’ operations are also subject to foreign income
taxes.

As discussed further in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements in our Form 10-K for December 31, 2015, we have deferred tax assets related to
foreign tax credits, alternative minimum tax credits, and domestic and foreign net operating losses (“NOLs”). Management assesses the available positive and
negative evidence to estimate if existing deferred tax assets will be utilized. We do not anticipate utilization of the foreign tax credits prior to expiration nor
do we expect to generate sufficient taxable income to utilize other deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, full valuation allowances have been
recorded as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

NOLs for our Gabon and Angola subsidiaries are included in the respective subsidiaries’ cost oil accounts which will be offset against future taxable
revenues.

Income taxes attributable to continuing operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and all of the income taxes for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2015 are attributable to foreign taxes payable in Gabon.

As discussed further in Note 4 above, our Angola operations are reflected as discontinued. In Angola, NOLs are not available to offset financial gains which
include foreign exchange gains and interest income. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded an immaterial amount and
$3.1 million for income taxes attributable to discontinued operations in Angola on financial gains related to foreign exchange gains as well as the interest paid
by Sonangol P&P on their past due joint interest account balance.
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11.  EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated using the average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each period. For the calculation of
diluted shares, we assume that restricted stock is outstanding on the date of grant, and we assume the issuance of shares from the exercise of stock options
using the treasury stock method.

A reconciliation from basic to diluted shares follows:   
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2016 2015 2016 2015
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 58,708,193 58,392,240 58,599,783 58,226,687 
Effect of dilutive securities  -  -  -  -

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 58,708,193 58,392,240 58,599,783 58,226,687 
Stock options excluded from dilutive calculation
     because they would be anti-dilutive 4,097,632 5,766,411 4,454,749 5,979,348 

Because we recognized net losses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, there were no dilutive securities for those periods.

12.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

Our operations are based in Gabon, Equatorial Guinea and the United States (“U.S.”).  Each of our three reportable operating segments is organized and
managed based upon geographic location. Our Chief Executive Officer, who is the chief operating decision maker, and management, review and evaluate the
operation of each geographic segment separately primarily based on Operating income (loss). The operations of all segments include exploration for and
production of hydrocarbons where commercial reserves have been found and developed. Revenues are based on the location of hydrocarbon production.
Corporate and other is primarily corporate and operations support costs which are not allocated to the reportable operating segments.

Segment activity of continuing operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 and segment assets at September 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Three Months Ended September 30, 2016
Equatorial Corporate

(in thousands) Gabon Guinea U.S. and Other Total

Revenues-oil and gas sales $ 14,540 $  - $ 95 $  - $ 14,635 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,508  - 38 61 1,607 
Impairment of proved properties  -  - 88  - 88 
Bad debt expense (recovery) and other 63  -  -  - 63 
Other operating expense 324  -  -  - 324 
Operating income (loss) 5,013 (184) (61) (1,910) 2,858 
Interest income (expense), net (329)  -  - 2 (327)
Income tax expense 2,305  -  - (107) 2,198 
Additions to property and equipment 674  -  - 7 681 

Three Months Ended September 30, 2015
Equatorial Corporate

(in thousands) Gabon Guinea U.S. and Other Total
Revenues-oil and gas sales $ 17,405 $  - $ 141 $  - $ 17,546 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 8,060  - 140 56 8,256 
Impairment of proved properties 17,988  -  -  - 17,988 
Bad debt expense (recovery) and other 2,750  -  -  - 2,750 
Operating income (loss) (29,007) (287) 42 (1,699) (30,951)
Interest income (expense), net (294)  -  - (168) (462)
Income tax expense 2,707  -  -  - 2,707 
Additions to property and equipment 10,796  - 1 7 10,804 
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2016
Equatorial Corporate

(in thousands) Gabon Guinea U.S. and Other Total

Revenues-oil and natural gas sales $ 44,212 $  - $ 246 $  - $ 44,458 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 5,484  - 121 182 5,787 
Impairment of proved properties  -  - 88  - 88 
Bad debt expense (recovery) and other 577  -  -  - 577 
Other operating expense 9,959  -  -  - 9,959 
Operating income (loss) 1,481 (319) (64) (7,322) (6,224)
Interest income (expense), net (2,285)  -  -  - (2,285)
Income tax expense 6,884  -  -  - 6,884 
Additions to property and equipment (1,819)  - 140 7 (1,672)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2015
Equatorial Corporate

(in thousands) Gabon Guinea U.S. and Other Total

Revenues-oil and natural gas sales $ 62,496 $  - $ 426 $  - $ 62,922 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 22,844  - 467 173 23,484 
Impairment of proved properties 29,208  -  -  - 29,208 
Bad debt expense and other 3,326  -  -  - 3,326 
Operating loss (31,286) (944) (372) (5,813) (38,415)
Interest income (expense), net (944)  -  - (163) (1,107)
Income tax expense 10,345  -  -  - 10,345 
Additions to property and equipment 44,215  - (16) 158 44,357 

Equatorial Corporate
(in thousands) Gabon Guinea U.S. and Other Total
Total assets from continuing operations:

as of September 30, 2016 $ 55,833 $ 10,169 $ 1,379 $ 9,074 $ 76,455 
as of December 31, 2015 98,858 10,200 1,470 5,045 115,573 
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 ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”) which are intended to be covered by the safe harbors created by those laws. We have
based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events. These forward-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future results of our operations. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this report that
address activities, events or developments that we expect or anticipate may occur in the future, including without limitation, statements regarding our financial
position, operating performance and results, reserve quantities and net present values, market prices, business strategy, derivative activities, the amount and
nature of capital expenditures and plans and objectives of management for future operations are forward-looking statements. When we use words such as
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “forecast,” “outlook,” “aim,”, “target”, “will,” “could,” “should,” “may,” “likely ,” “plan,” “probably”
or similar expressions, we are making forward-looking statements. Many risks and uncertainties that could affect our future results and could cause results to
differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

· our ability to continue as a going concern;
· further declines, volatility of and weakness in oil and natural gas prices;
· our ability to maintain liquidity in view of current oil and natural gas prices;
· our ability to meet the financial covenants of our loan agreement;
· the resolution of matters related to our exit from Angola;
· the uncertainty of estimates of oil and natural gas reserves;
· the impact of competition;
· the availability and cost of seismic, drilling and other equipment;
· operating hazards inherent in the exploration for and production of oil and natural gas;
· difficulties encountered during the exploration for and production of oil and natural gas;
· difficulties encountered in measuring, transporting and delivering oil to commercial markets;
· discovery, acquisition, development and replacement of oil and natural gas reserves;
· timing and amount of future production of oil and natural gas;
· hedging decisions, including whether or not to enter into derivative financial instruments;
· our ability to effectively integrate companies and properties that we acquire;
· general economic conditions, including any future economic downturn, disruption in financial markets and the availability of credit;
· changes in customer demand and producers’ supply;
· future capital requirements and our ability to attract capital;
· currency exchange rates;
· actions by the governments of and events occurring in the countries in which we operate;
· actions by our venture partners;
· compliance with, or the effect of changes in, governmental regulations regarding our exploration, production, and well completion operations

including those related to climate change; 
· the outcome of any governmental audit;
· actions of operators of our oil and natural gas properties;
· our ability to meet the continued listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) or to cure any deficiency in meeting the listing

standards; and
· weather conditions.

The information contained in this report and the information set forth under the heading “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2015 (“2015 Form 10-K”) and under the heading “Item 1A. Risk Factor” in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2016 (“June 30 2016 Form 10-Q”) identifies additional factors that could cause our results or performance to differ materially from those we express
in forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying our forward-looking statements are reasonable, any of these assumptions
and therefore also the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions, could themselves prove to be inaccurate. In light of the significant
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uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements which are included in this report, the 2015 Form 10-K and the June 30, 2016 Form 10-Q, our
inclusion of this information is not a representation by us or any other person that our objectives and plans will be achieved. When you consider our forward-
looking statements, you should keep in mind these risk factors and the other cautionary statements in this report.

Our forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made, and we will not update these forward-looking statements unless the securities laws require us
to do so. Our forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. In light of these risks, uncertainties and
assumptions, any forward-looking events discussed in this report may not occur.

INTRODUCTION

VAALCO is a Houston-based independent energy company principally engaged in the acquisition, exploration, development and production of crude oil and
natural gas. As operator, we have production operations and conduct exploration activities in Gabon, West Africa.  We participate in exploration and
development activities as a non-operator in Equatorial Guinea, West Africa. VAALCO is the operator of two unconventional wells in the United States in
North Texas and holds undeveloped leasehold acreage in Montana. We also own some minor interests in conventional production activities as a non-operator
in the United States. As discussed further in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, we have discontinued operations associated with our
activities in Angola, West Africa, and have entered into letters of intent to sell our interests in North Texas and Montana.

A significant component of our results of operations is dependent upon the difference between prices received for our offshore Gabon oil production and the
costs to find and produce such oil. Oil and natural gas prices have been and are expected in the future to be volatile and subject to fluctuations based on a
number of factors beyond our control. Beginning in the third quarter of 2014, the prices for oil and natural gas began a dramatic decline which continued
through 2015 and into early 2016. Current prices, while higher than those in early 2016, are significantly less than they were in the several years prior to mid-
2014. Sustained low oil and natural gas prices or further decreases in oil and natural gas prices could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and the carrying value of our proved oil and natural gas properties and undeveloped leasehold interests and our ability to borrow amounts under the
Additional Term Loan with the International Finance Corporation (the “IFC”). As with prices received for oil production, the costs to find and produce oil and
natural gas are largely not within our control. 

CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS    

In 2016, prices for oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids continued to remain at low levels experienced in 2015. These low prices have affected our business
in numerous ways, including causing:

· a material reduction in our revenues, cash flows and liquidity;

· a decrease in the valuation of our proved reserves, additional impairments of our oil and natural gas properties and the possibility that some of our
existing wells may become uneconomic;

· us to implement reductions in our workforce in order to reduce costs; and

· an increase in the possibility that some of the purchasers of our oil and natural gas production, or some of the companies that provide us with services,
may experience financial difficulties.

Price declines also adversely affected our borrowing capacity based mainly on the value of our oil and natural gas reserves. Our borrowing base was reduced
from $65.0 million to $20.1 million effective December 31, 2015. On June 29, 2016, we executed a Supplemental Agreement with the IFC, the lender under
our revolving credit facility which among other things, amended and restated our loan agreement to convert $20 million of the revolving portion of the credit
facility into a term loan.  Currently $15 million is outstanding as a term loan with an additional $5 million that may be requested in a single draw between
now and December 31, 2016, subject to the IFC’s approval.  See Note 6 to the condensed consolidated financial statements and “Capital Resources and
Liquidity—Liquidity—Credit Facility” below for additional details about the loan agreement.

In January 2016, our Board of Directors formed a strategic committee to oversee the evaluation of our strategic alternatives. The committee is exploring
strategic options including, but not limited to, securing additional investment to support existing projects and growth opportunities, joint ventures, asset sales
or farm-outs, our potential sale or merger, or continuing to pursue our existing operating plan. We will continue to pursue ways to increase liquidity.
However, we can give no assurances that any of these strategic alternatives can be completed, and if so, on reasonable terms that are acceptable to us. 

As discussed in Note 5 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, we recorded impairments on our proved oil and natural gas properties in periods
prior to 2016. We could experience write-downs in the remainder of 2016. It is difficult to predict with reasonable certainty the amount of expected future
impairments given the many factors impacting the calculation including, but not limited to, future pricing, operating costs, drilling and completion costs, and
reserve additions and adjustments. Our impairment calculations have been based upon reserve economics using forecasted future prices, adjusted for specifics
related to our production. If projected per barrel prices used in the impairment calculation made as of September 30, 2016 had been $5.00 lower, there would
still have been no impairment.  Given the uncertainty associated with the factors used in these calculations, these estimates should not necessarily be
construed as indicative of our future financial results.    

As discussed further in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, on September 30, 2016, we notified Sonangol P&P, our joint venture
partner in Block 5, that we were withdrawing from the Block 5 joint operating agreement effective October 31, 2016.  In addition to the withdrawal, we have
taken actions to begin closing our office in Angola and do not intend to conduct future
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activities in Angola.  As a result of this strategic shift, as of September 30, 2016, the Angola segment has been reflected as discontinued in our financial
statements.

As discussed further in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, on March 14, 2016, we received payment of $19.0 million from Sonangol
P&P for the full amount owed us as of December 31, 2015, including the $7.6 million of pre-assignment costs.  The $7.6 million recovery is reflected in the
“Bad debt expense (recovery) and other” line of our summarized results of discontinued operations. Default interest of $3.2 million was received and is shown
in the Interest income line of our summarized results of discontinued operations. While this payment improved our liquidity in the short-term, we are
continuing to pursue alternatives for increasing our liquidity. 

As discussed further in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, on July 28, 2016, we signed a purchase and sale agreement to acquire an
additional 2.98% working interest (3.23% participating interest) in the Etame Marin block located offshore the Republic of Gabon from Sojitz Etame Limited
(“Sojitz”), which represents all the interest owned by Sojitz in the concession.

As discussed in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, on September 21, 2016, we signed a letter of intent to sell our interests in two
wells in the Hefley field in North Texas for $850,000 and on October 17, 2016, we signed a letter of intent to sell our interests in the East Poplar Dome field
in Montana for $250,000.  We expect these transactions to be concluded during the fourth quarter of 2016. As a result of the letter of intent signed to sell our
interests in the two wells in North Texas for $850,000, we performed an impairment test and determined that a $0.1 million impairment was
required. Substantially all of the reserves and production in the United States are attributable to the Hefley field.  As of December 31, 2015, proved reserves in
the United States were 190.5 MBOE, and sales volumes in the United States for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 were 18.0 MBOE.

In light of the continued depressed levels of oil prices, we intend to focus on maintaining oil production levels and lowering operating costs with respect to
current production in our Etame Marin block located offshore Gabon. In early 2016, we determined that additional development drilling is uneconomic at
then current commodity prices. In January 2016, we began demobilizing our contracted drilling rig and do not intend to drill any wells in 2016 on the Etame
Marin block. In June 2016, we reached an agreement with the drilling contractor to pay $5.1 million net to VAALCO’s interest for unused rig days under the
contract. We are paying this amount, plus the demobilization charges, in seven equal monthly installments beginning in July 2016. We are currently
evaluating with our partners the prospect of conducting some development drilling in 2017.

GOING CONCERN    

Our revenues, cash flows, profitability, oil and natural gas reserve values and future rates of growth are substantially dependent upon prevailing prices for oil
and natural gas. Our ability to borrow funds and to obtain additional capital on attractive terms is also substantially dependent on oil and natural gas prices.
Historically, world-wide oil and natural gas prices and markets have been volatile, and will likely continue to be volatile. In particular, the prices of oil and
natural gas declined dramatically in the second half of 2014 and remained low, decreasing further in 2015 and early 2016. Revenues have increased from
$11.0 million in the first quarter 2016 to $14.6 million in the third quarter of 2016 primarily as a result of improving prices.  

As discussed in Note 6 to the condensed consolidated financial statements,  in June 2016, we modified our revolving credit facility with the IFC converting
$20 million of our revolving credit facility into a term loan with $15 million borrowed and the option to request, with approval being at the IFC’s discretion,
an additional $5 million in a single draw between now and December 31, 2016. Our available liquidity, therefore, continues to be limited. 

If we fail to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness or trade payables, or fail to comply with the financial and other restrictive covenants
contained in our loan agreement with the IFC, an event of default under the amended loan agreement and acceleration of our term loan debt and other
indebtedness could result,  which could permit the IFC to foreclose on any of our assets securing that debt. Any accelerated debt would become immediately
due and payable. As discussed in Note 6,  certain of our financial covenants under the amended loan agreement have been relaxed through the end of 2016.

During the third quarter of 2016, we received notice from the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) that our stock had fallen below the minimum listing
standards which requires that the average closing price of our common stock be not less than $1.00 per share for a period of over 30 consecutive trading days.
We are considering various options to come into compliance with this requirement; however, should the delisting occur, it could cause additional difficulties
in accessing the capital markets.

If oil and natural gas prices continue at levels seen in the second and third quarters of 2016, we expect that for the remainder of 2016 through the end of 2017
we will generate cash flows sufficient to cover our operating expenses. However, depressed oil and natural gas prices, like those seen in the first quarter of
2016, would have a material adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition, results of operations and on the carrying value of our proved oil and natural
gas properties. To fund potential growth opportunities going forward, we are considering multiple alternatives, including, but not limited to, additional debt or
equity financing through traditional sources or strategic partnerships. There can be no guarantee of future capital acquisition or fundraising success. Our
current cash position and our ability to access additional capital may limit our available opportunities and not provide sufficient cash to support our operations.
 These conditions continue to raise doubts about our ability to continue as a going concern. 

Our financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of

19

 



Table of Contents
 

liabilities that might be necessary should we be unable to continue as a going concern. See Note 2 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

ACTIVITIES BY ASSET 

Gabon

Offshore

Development and Production

We operate the Etame, Avouma/South Tchibala, Ebouri, Southeast Etame and the North Tchibala fields on behalf of a consortium of five companies. In 2015,
we completed a development plan, initiated in 2012, consisting of two new platforms, a multi-well development drilling campaign and several well
workovers.  As of September 30, 2016 production is from three subsea wells and six platform wells which are tied back by pipelines to deliver oil and
associated natural gas through a riser system to allow for delivery, processing, storage and ultimately offloading the oil from a leased Floating, Production,
Storage and Offloading vessel (“FPSO”) anchored to the seabed on the block. With the FPSO limitations of approximately 25,000 barrels of oil per day
(“BOPD”) and 30,000 barrels of total fluids per day, the challenge is to optimize production on both a near and long-term basis subject to investment and
operational agreements between VAALCO and the consortium. During the first nine months of 2016 and 2015, production from the block was approximately
4,835 MBbls (1,181 MBbls net) and 4,972 MBbls (1,215 MBbls net).

During the first quarter of 2016, workovers were conducted on two wells producing from the Avouma platform. An electrical submersible pump (“ESP”) was
successfully replaced in the first well and the second workover was suspended due to operational problems. Following the workovers and an ESP failure in
another Avouma well, there were two wells producing from the Avouma platform, which were the South Tchibala 2-H and the Avouma 2-H.

During the second and third quarters of 2016, however, the ESPs in the South Tchibala 2-H well and the Avouma 2-H well failed, and these wells are
temporarily shut-in. These wells were producing approximately 4,400 gross BOPD, or 1,075 BOPD net to VAALCO just before being temporarily shut-in.
Production decreased from 4,725 BOPD in the second quarter of 2016 to 3,772 BOPD as a result of the ESP failures.  We are working to mobilize a hydraulic
workover unit onto the Avouma platform to remove the failed ESPs and have them analyzed for the cause of the failure by the manufacturer. We are
developing a plan to replace the ESPs in the affected wells and anticipate restoring at least a portion of the shut-in production by late fourth quarter 2016.
Based on recent technical analysis, the temporary shut-in of these wells will not have a significant impact on our estimated reserves; however, volumes will
now not include those from the affected wells. Our net share of the cost is expected to be approximately $3.1 million.  

Impairment

No impairment of proved properties was necessary in the nine months ended September 30, 2016. In the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015,
we recorded aggregate impairment of $18.0 million and $29.2 million, respectively, to write down our investment in certain fields of the Etame Marin block to
their fair value. The decrease in fair value was primarily a result of lower forecasted oil prices, as well as higher costs for planned development wells used in
the impairment evaluation.

Onshore 

VAALCO has a 50% working interest (41% net working interest assuming the Republic of Gabon exercises its back-in rights) and operates the Mutamba
Iroru block located onshore Gabon. We made a discovery on the block in 2012; however, as a result of lower projected oil price data at September 30, 2015,
the results from the economic modeling indicated that the costs for this well did not continue to meet the criteria for suspended well costs, and all capitalized
costs related to the project, including capitalized exploratory well costs, were charged to exploration expense in the third quarter of 2015. The government of
Gabon believes that our production sharing contract (“PSC”) for the block expired in mid-2014. While we maintain that the PSC is still valid, we expect that a
new PSC would be required in order to pursue development, and we would only enter into a new PSC in the event that the project becomes economic. We can
provide no assurances as to either the approval of a new PSC by the Government of Gabon, or the subsequent approval of a development plan by the
Government of Gabon.

Equatorial Guinea

VAALCO has a 31% working interest in a portion of Block P, offshore Equatorial Guinea, which was acquired for $10.0 million in 2012 primarily for the
exploration potential on the block. Prior to our acquisition, two oil discoveries had been made on the block, establishing a development and production area
(the “PDA”). At the time the PDA was established, the block was divided into PDA and non-PDA portions, and we do not have a participating interest in the
non-PDA portion. The Ministry of Mines, Industry and Energy and GEPetrol, the current block operator, are reviewing a revised joint operating agreement
which would name us as operator of Block P. Given the current depressed commodity prices, it is likely we will minimize any near-term expenditures and
expenses in Equatorial Guinea. Before beginning exploration, we and our partners will need to evaluate timing and budgeting for development and exploration
activities in the PDA, including the approval of a development and production plan. Development project economics are being re-evaluated considering the
continued depressed oil prices and the expected decrease in development costs associated with the fall in oil prices. The production sharing contract covering
the PDA provides for a development and production period of twenty-five years from the date of approval of a development and production plan.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Cash Flows

A summary of our cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
Nine Months Ended September 30, Increase

(in thousands) 2016 2015 (Decrease)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (36) $ 37,519 $ (37,555)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,655 (66,321) 67,976 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (93) 452 (545)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 1,526 $ (28,350) $ 29,876 

The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015 was primarily
related to:  lower 2016 crude oil prices, lower oil sales volume and higher workover expense, as well as a reduction in cash provided by changes in working
capital.

Property and equipment expenditures have historically been our most significant use of cash in investing activities. During the nine months ended September
30, 2016, these expenditures on a cash basis were $12.8 million, primarily related to final payments made on invoices related to the development program
completed in 2015. This compares to $53.3 million in the same period of 2015. These cash property and equipment expenditures are included in capital
expenditures. See “Capital Expenditures” below for further discussion. The nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 also included the cash inflows
of $15.3 million and $5.5 million, respectively, for the reduction in restricted cash. Prior to the September 30, 2016 quarterly reporting period, we classified
the $15.0 million commitment for drilling these wells as long term restricted cash on our balance sheet. As a result of our decision to terminate the contract,
we are no longer reflecting the $15.0 million as restricted cash. Reductions in restricted cash in the nine months ended September 30, 2015 were primarily a
result of fulfilling the commitment for one of the four exploration wells in Angola.

Capital Expenditures

During nine months ended September 30, 2016,  we had negative accrual basis capital expenditures of $1.7 million as a result of better information. We now
expect full-year 2016 capital expenditures to be less than $1.0 million, which is mainly for equipment and enhancements.  Capital expenditures of $44.4
million incurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2015 were primarily associated with the drilling of four development wells offshore Gabon.
The difference between capital expenditures and the property and equipment expenditures reported in our condensed consolidated statements of cash flows is
attributable to changes in accruals for costs incurred but not yet invoiced or paid on the report dates.

Liquidity

Credit Facility    

Historically, our primary sources of capital have been cash flows from operating activities, borrowings under the credit facility with the IFC and cash balances
on hand.

On June 29, 2016, we executed a Supplemental Agreement with the IFC which, among other things, amended and restated the existing loan agreement to
convert $20 million of the revolving portion of the credit facility, to a term loan (the “Term Loan”) with $15 million outstanding and an additional $5 million
(the “Additional Term Loan”) which can be requested in a single draw, subject to the IFC’s approval, between now and December 31, 2016. The amended
loan agreement is secured by the assets of our Gabon subsidiary, VAALCO Gabon (Etame), Inc. and is guaranteed by VAALCO as the parent company.
Before we are able to draw the Additional Term Loan, the IFC, as part of their consideration of our loan request, will make a determination of whether our
Gabon subsidiary’s current and projected revenues from operations are sufficient to cover the aggregate amount of principal, interest, commissions, fees and
any other amounts due in respect of the Additional Term Loan. If drawn, the Additional Term Loan amount shall be amortized in equal quarterly installments
through June 30, 2018. The amended loan agreement provides for quarterly principal and interest payments on the amounts currently outstanding through June
30, 2019, with interest accruing at a rate of LIBOR plus 5.75%; however, principal repayments under the amended loan agreement are dependent upon the
timing of our additional borrowing, if any, with the payments to commence on either December 31, 2016 or March 31, 2017. If we do not borrow under the
additional borrowing provision before December 15, 2016, no principal payments are due until March 31, 2017.

The amended loan agreement contains a number of restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us. These covenants
restrict our ability to engage in certain actions, including potentially limiting our ability to sell assets, make future borrowings or incur other additional
indebtedness. Our ability to meet our quarter-end net debt to EBITDAX ratio and our debt service coverage ratio can be affected by events beyond our
control, including changes in commodity prices. There can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with these covenants in future periods. In addition,
if we receive any waivers or amendments to our amended loan agreement, the lender may impose additional operating and financial restrictions on us or
modify the terms of the loan agreement.
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Under the amended loan agreement, quarter-end net debt to EBITDAX (as defined in the loan agreement) must be no more than 3.0 to 1.0. However, the
quarter-end net debt to EBITDAX limitation has been raised to 5.0 to 1.0 for all periods through the end of 2016. Additionally, our debt service coverage
ratio must be greater than 1.2 to 1.0 at each quarter end. Forecasting our compliance with these and other financial covenants in future periods is inherently
uncertain. Factors that could impact our quarter-end financial covenants in future periods include future realized prices for sales of oil and natural gas,
estimated future production, returns generated by our capital program, and future interest costs, among others. We are in compliance with all financial
covenants as of September 30, 2016. However, we can make no assurance that we will be able to comply with these financial covenants in the future. 

Cash on Hand

At September 30, 2016, we had unrestricted cash of $26.9 million, including $15.0 million which previously was recorded as long term restricted cash prior to
the September 30, 2016 quarterly reporting period.  Previously, we classified the $15.0 million commitment for drilling the three remaining Angola
exploratory well commitments as long term restricted cash on our balance sheet; however, as a result of our decision to terminate the joint operating
agreement, we are no longer reflecting the $15.0 million as restricted cash. We have also accrued $15 million for the penalty which we believe represents the
maximum potential amount due under the agreement. As operator of the Etame Marin and Mutamba Iroru blocks in Gabon, we enter into project related
activities on behalf of our working interest partners. We generally obtain advances from partners prior to significant funding commitments.

We currently sell our crude oil production from Gabon under a term contract that ends in January 2017. Pricing under the contract is based upon an average of
Dated Brent in the month of lifting, adjusted for location and market factors.  For additional disclosure about our liquidity and capital resources see “-Going
Concern.”

Share Repurchase

In the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, no purchases were made under the share repurchase program authorized by our Board of Directors
on August 4, 2015. See the 2015 Form 10-K for further information about the program.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Our guarantee of the offshore Gabon FPSO lease has $133 million in remaining minimum obligations for the gross amount of charter payments at September
30, 2016.  There have been no other changes to our off-balance sheet arrangements since December 31, 2015.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Other than the negotiated reduction in the drilling rig commitment,  the amendment of our loan agreement and the Sojitz purchase and sale agreement,  and
the drilling obligation in Angola discussed in Notes 7,  6 and 4 respectively, to the condensed consolidated financial statements, there have been no
significant changes to our commitments and contractual obligations subsequent to December 31, 2015.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There have been no changes to our critical accounting policies subsequent to December 31, 2015.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

See Note 3 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2015

We reported a  net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2016 of $15.6 million compared to a  $33.7 million net loss for the same period of 2015.
These losses are inclusive of loss from discontinued operations for the three months ended September 30, 2016 of $15.8 million and income from
discontinued operations for the three months ended September 30, 2015 of $0.9 million. Further discussion of results by significant line item follows:  

Oil and natural gas revenues decreased $2.9 million between the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015. Based on the
average realized oil prices in the table below, the decrease in revenue is primarily related to 13% lower oil sales volume due to temporarily shut-in wells and
4% lower realized oil prices due to decreases in the Dated Brent market price. As a result of the elections in Gabon, we chose to lift earlier in the month in
August which resulted in lower lifting volumes for the quarter.

The revenue changes in the three months ended September 30, 2016 identified as related to changes in price or volume are shown in the table below: 

(in thousands)
Price $ (582)
Volume (2,394)
Other 65 

$ (2,911)
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Three Months Ended September 30,
2016 2015

Gabon net oil production (MBbls) 347 431 

Gabon net oil sales (MBbls) 343 396 
U.S. net oil sales (MBbls) 1 1 

Net oil sales (MBbls) 344 397 
Net natural gas sales (MMcf) 32 53 
Net oil equivalents (MBOE) 349 406 

Average realized oil price ($/Bbl) $42.31 $43.97 
Average realized natural gas price ($/Mcf) 2.37 2.75 
Weighted average realized price ($/BOE) 42.05 43.37 
Average Dated Brent spot* ($/Bbl) 45.80 50.44 

*Average of daily Dated Brent spot prices posted on the U.S. Energy Information Administration website.

Crude oil sales are a function of the number and size of crude oil liftings in each quarter from the FPSO, and thus crude oil sales do not always coincide with
volumes produced in any given quarter. We made three liftings in the third quarters of both 2016 and 2015. Our share of oil inventory aboard the FPSO,
excluding royalty barrels, was approximately 39,000 and 55,000 barrels at September 30, 2016 and 2015.

Production expenses decreased $0.7 million in the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015 primarily as a result of cost
reductions implemented in late 2015 and early 2016.

Exploration expense was minimal in the three months ended September 30, 2016.  During the three months ended September 30, 2015, we charged to dry
hole costs $9.2 million of exploratory well costs incurred in 2012 related to the N’Gongui No. 2 discovery that had been capitalized pending the determination
of proved reserves.    

Depreciation, depletion and amortization (“DD&A”) decreased $6.6 million in the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of
2015.  For the three months ended September 30, 2016, DD&A per BOE was lower due to impairments in 2015.

General and administrative expenses decreased $0.2 million in the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015. This is
primarily a result of lower stock-based compensation expense reflecting forfeitures related to employee departures.  In addition, we took steps beginning in
2015 to reduce overall general and administrative costs, with decreases realized in personnel costs, services and various other cost categories.  However, the
amount of overhead we are able to recover from our partners in 2016 has decreased and partially offset the benefits from reductions in personnel and other
costs. Under our operating agreements the amount of overhead recoverable is larger when capital spending is higher, as it was in 2015 with the development
program in Gabon and the exploratory drilling in Angola. 

Impairment of proved properties is discussed in detail in Note 5 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Other operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2016 includes $0.2 million related to the demobilization and release of the contracted
drilling rig in Gabon.

Interest expense decreased $0.1 million in the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015 due to conversion of the credit
facility to the Term Loan. Under the terms of the original revolving credit facility, we paid commitment fees on the undrawn portion of the total commitment.
From June 29, 2016 through December 31, 2016, commitment fees are 2.3% of the undrawn Additional Term Loan of $5 million. The decrease in
commitment fees is partially offset by a decrease in capitalized interest as none of the interest expense incurred in the three months ended September 30, 2016
was capitalized; however, a considerable portion of the interest expense incurred in the same period of 2015 was capitalized. See Note 6 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for further discussion of our loan agreement and interest expense. 

Other, net consists primarily of derivative instrument gains (losses) as discussed in Note 8 to the condensed consolidated financial statements and foreign
currency gains (losses).

Income tax expense decreased $0.5 million in the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015.  Income tax expense in both
periods is primarily attributable to our operations in Gabon and is lower in 2016 than income tax for the comparable 2015 period as a result of lower revenues.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations is attributable to our Angola segment as discussed further in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial
statements. Loss from discontinued operations increased $16.6 million in the three months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015
due to the $15.0 million accrual related to the potential drilling penalty in 2016 and a
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decrease of $2.0 million in foreign exchange gains. This was partially offset by a decrease of $0.7 million in general and administrative expenses in the three
months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015.

Nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2015 

We reported a net loss of $23.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to $77.9 million for the same period of 2015.  These losses
are inclusive of losses from discontinued operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 of $8.0 million and $27.8 million, respectively.
Further discussion of results by significant line item follows:  

Oil and natural gas revenues decreased $18.5 million between the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015. Based on the
average realized oil prices in the table below, the decrease in revenue is primarily related to 26% lower realized oil prices, which are due to decreases in the
Dated Brent market price. The improvement in oil sales volume in the first and second quarters of 2016 partially offset the volume reduction in the third
quarter of 2016 when compared to 2015.

The revenue changes in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 identified as related to changes in price or volume are shown in the table below:

(in thousands)
Price $ (15,521)
Volume (3,506)
Other 563 

$ (18,464)

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2016 2015

Gabon net oil production (MBbls) 1,181 1,215 

Gabon net oil sales (MBbls) 1,159 1,223 
U.S. net oil sales (MBbls) 2 4 

Net oil sales (MBbls) 1,161 1,227 
Net natural gas sales (MMcf) 99 146 
Net oil equivalents (MBOE) 1,177 1,251 

Average realized oil price ($/Bbl) $37.72 $51.02 
Average realized natural gas price ($/Mcf) 1.85 2.74 
Weighted average realized price ($/BOE) 37.80 50.35 
Average Dated Brent spot* ($/Bbl) 41.86 55.08 

*Average of daily Dated Brent spot prices posted on the U.S. Energy Information Administration website.

We made nine and eight liftings in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  

Production expenses decreased $0.9 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015. Cost reductions implemented
in late 2015 and early 2016 are taking effect and the estimated accrual for workovers was reduced based on better information.

Exploration expense was minimal in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to exploration expense for the nine months ended September 30,
2015, which was primarily comprised of the impairment of our unproved leasehold in Montana and seismic activity. 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization (“DD&A”) decreased $17.7 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of
2015.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2016, DD&A per BOE rates were lower due to impairments in 2015.

General and administrative expenses decreased $0.5 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015. This is
primarily a result of lower stock-based compensation expense reflecting forfeitures related to employee departures.  In addition, we took steps beginning in
2015 to reduce overall general and administrative costs, with decreases realized in personnel costs, services and various other cost categories. However, the
full benefit of those reductions is not apparent because the amount of overhead we are able to recover from our partners in 2016 has decreased. Under our
operating agreements the amount of overhead recoverable is larger when capital spending is higher, as it was in 2015 with the development program in Gabon
and the exploratory drilling in Angola.

Impairment of proved properties is discussed in detail in Note 5 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Other operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 includes $2.1 million accrued for certain payroll taxes in Gabon which were not paid
pertaining to labor provided to us over a number of years by a third-party contractor and $7.9 million, net to VAALCO, of expense associated with the
demobilization and release of the contracted drilling rig. In June 2016, we reached an agreement with the drilling contractor to pay less than our originally
estimated maximum day rate, plus demobilization costs, in seven equal monthly installments beginning in July 2016.

General and administrative related to shareholder matters for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 reflects our reimbursement by our insurance carrier
of some previously expensed legal costs.  

Bad debt expense (recovery) and other for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 primarily consists of net increases in the VAT allowance.

Interest expense increased $1.2 million in the  nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015 primarily due to the write-off of
deferred financing costs in June upon conversion of the credit facility to the Term Loan and a decrease in capitalized interest as none of the interest expense
incurred in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 was capitalized; however, a considerable portion of the interest expense incurred in the same period of
2015 was capitalized. See Note 6 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion of our loan agreement and interest expense. 

Other, net consists primarily of derivative instrument gains (losses) as discussed in Note 8 to the condensed consolidated financial statements and foreign
currency gains (losses).

Income tax expense decreased $3.5 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015. Income tax expense in both
periods is primarily attributable to our operations in Gabon and is lower in 2016 than income tax for the comparable 2015 period as a result of lower revenues.

Loss from discontinued operations is attributable to our Angola segment as discussed further in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
Loss from discontinued operations decreased $19.8 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2016 compared to the same period of 2015. Results for
the nine months ended September 30, 2016 were primarily attributable to the $15.0 million accrual related to the potential drilling penalty and other
exploration expense, partially offset by $7.6 million of bad debt recovery and $3.2 million of default interest discussed further in Note 1 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements. Results for the 2015 comparable period were primarily attributable to dry hole costs for the Kindele #1 well. In addition, the
2015 comparable period included general and administrative expenses and foreign exchange gains.

ITE M 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk, including the effects of adverse changes in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, derivative instruments and interest rates
as described below.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Our results of operations and financial condition are affected by currency exchange rates. While oil sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, portions of our costs
in Gabon and Angola are denominated in the respective local currency. A weakening U.S. dollar will have the effect of increasing costs while a strengthening
U.S. dollar will have the effect of reducing costs. The Gabon local currency is tied to the Euro. The exchange rate between the Euro and the U.S. dollar has
fluctuated widely in response to international political conditions, general economic conditions and other factors beyond our control. The exchange rate
between the Angola local currency and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated for similar reasons, with the Angola local currency losing value against the U.S. dollar
over recent quarters.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The floating rate on our amended loan agreement exposes us to risks associated with changes in interest rates (LIBOR). At September 30, 2016, we have a
 $15.0 million term loan. Fluctuations in floating interest rates will cause our interest costs to fluctuate. If the balance of the debt at September 30, 2016 were
to remain constant, a 1% change in market interest rates would impact our cash flow by an estimated $150,000 per year. As future quarterly payments reduce
the principal of the term loan, our cash flow becomes less sensitive to fluctuations in interest rate.    

COUNTERPARTY RISK

We are exposed to market risk on our open derivative instruments related to potential nonperformance by our counterparty. To mitigate this risk, we enter into
such derivative contracts with creditworthy financial institutions deemed by management as competent and competitive market makers.
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COMMODITY PRICE RISK

Our major market risk exposure continues to be the prices received for our oil and natural gas production. Sales prices are primarily driven by the prevailing
market prices applicable to our production. Market prices for oil and natural gas have been volatile and unpredictable in recent years, and this volatility is
expected to continue.  Beginning in the third quarter of 2014, the prices for oil and natural gas began a dramatic decline which continued through 2015 and
into 2016. Current prices are significantly less than they were in the several years prior to 2015. Sustained low oil and natural gas prices or further decreases
in oil and natural gas prices could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, the carrying value of our proved reserves, our undeveloped
leasehold interests and the borrowing base under our IFC credit facility.  Were oil sales to remain constant at the most recent quarterly sales volumes of 343
MBbls, a $5 per Bbl decrease in oil price would be expected to cause a $1.7 million decrease per quarter ($6.9 million annualized) in revenues and operating
income (loss) and a $1.4 million increase per quarter ($5.8 million annualized) in net loss.

In order to partially limit our commodity price risk, in April 2016, we entered into put contracts on 36,000 barrels of oil per month for the period from June
2016 through February 2017 at Dated Brent of $40 per barrel. This volume represents approximately one-third of our total forecasted sales volumes for the
period. While these crude oil derivative contracts are intended to be an economic hedge, they are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. The
contracts are measured at fair value at the end of each quarter, with changes in value flowing through net income. See Note 8 to the condensed consolidated
financial statements for further information about these contracts, their fair value and their impact on our net income. We had no commodity price derivatives
outstanding as of and during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2015.

ITEM 4.  CO NTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports we
file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and
that such information is accumulated and communicated by our management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Our management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period
covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. As described in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, a material
weakness was previously identified in our internal control over financial reporting related to the control environment, risk assessment and internal control
over financial reporting due to insufficient financial reporting resources.

A material weakness was previously identified by our management and disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
In 2015, management began remediation measures to address this material weakness as described in our 2015 Form 10-K. Management determined that while
the overall effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting was enhanced during 2015, newly implemented controls were not yet operating effectively
at December 31, 2015. Accordingly, management, with oversight from our Audit Committee, determined to:

· Continue the remediation plan begun in 2015, refining key controls related to accruals, account balance reconciliations, account analyses and
analytical reviews.

· Continue to improve timing of the periodic financial close and reporting process through the use of a detailed financial close plan and expanded
reporting of financial data to senior management.

We began implementing these measures in the first quarter of 2016 and continue to refine the remediation plan. 

We believe that the steps described above and in our 2015 Form 10-K have enhanced the overall effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.
However, management concluded that the newly implemented controls were not operating effectively at September  30, 2016 and that as of September  30,
2016 the same material weakness existed. Management is committed to improving its internal control processes and believes that the measures described
above should remediate the material weakness that was identified in 2014 and continued into 2015 and strengthen internal control over financial reporting. As
we continue to evaluate and improve internal control over financial reporting, adequate time to test and evaluate the effectiveness of the measure taken is
needed and modifications to certain of the remediation procedures described above may be necessary. Distress in the oil and gas industry coupled with our
status within that industry as a small company with some doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern present challenges in attracting and retaining
finance and accounting personnel.  We have experienced changes in key finance and accounting personnel over the past few years, including during the third
and fourth quarters of 2016 which results in uncertainty as to the effective implementation of our remedial actions.  We are working diligently to demonstrate
the effectiveness of the remedial actions for the material weakness.

While senior management and our Audit Committee are closely monitoring the implementation of these remediation plans, we cannot provide any assurance
that these remediation efforts will be successful or that internal control over financial reporting will be effective as a result of these efforts. Until the
remediation steps set forth above are fully implemented and operating for a sufficient period of time, the material weakness that exists at September 30, 2016
will continue to exist.

Based on our evaluation of the material weakness described above, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as a result of this
material weakness.
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Except for the activities taken related to the remediation of the material weakness described above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during three months ended September 30, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal
control over financial reporting.

 

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION 

  ITEM 1.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

We are subject to litigation claims and governmental and regulatory proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.  It is management’s opinion that
all claims and litigation we are involved in are not likely to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, cash flows or results of
operations.

On December 7, 2015, Plaintiff Vladimir Gusinsky Living Trust filed a stockholder class action lawsuit in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (the
“Court”) against the Company and all of its directors alleging that certain provisions of the Company’s Restated Charter and Second Amended and Restated
Bylaws that restricted the removal of its directors to removal for cause only (the “director removal provisions”) were invalid as a matter of Delaware law.
Plaintiff George Shapiro also filed a similar stockholder class action lawsuit in the Court on December 7, 2015. Thereafter, the plaintiffs agreed to the
consolidation of their cases (the “Consolidated Case”).

After a hearing on the Consolidated Case on December 21, 2015, Vice Chancellor Laster issued an opinion in In re VAALCO Energy, Inc. Stockholder
Litigation, Consol. C.A. No. 11775-VCL holding that, in the absence of a classified board or cumulative voting, the director removal provisions conflicted
with Section 141(k) of the Delaware General Corporation Law and are therefore invalid.

On April 20, 2016, the Court approved a Stipulation and Order of Dismissal entered into by the parties in the Consolidated Case. We agreed to settle
plaintiffs’ application for an award of attorneys’ fees and expenses due to the costs of defense of that application and litigation risk associated therewith.

On October 3, 2016, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (the “Court”) approved a Stipulation and Order of Dismissal entered into by the parties in
a stockholder class action lawsuit against the Company and all of its directors alleging that a previously terminated shareholder rights agreement, no longer in
effect, and certain provisions of the former CEO’s and former CFO’s employment agreements securing change-in-control severance benefits were invalid
under Delaware law, case number C.A. No. 12277-VCL, filed on April 29, 2016,  in the Court.  After the Company and its directors moved to dismiss the
lawsuit, the Plaintiff Daniel Butcher agreed to dismiss the lawsuit as moot, and the Company agreed to settle Plaintiff’s application for an award of attorneys’
fees, which it expects its insurer to pay, due to the anticipated costs of continuing to prosecute the motion to dismiss and defending the Plaintiff’s fee
application, as well as the litigation risk associated therewith. 

The Stipulation and Order of Dismissal is attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and is incorporated herein by reference.

  ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS 

We may incur a significant penalty for failing to drill all the commitment wells under our production sharing contract in Angola

Under the production sharing contract for Block 5 in Angola, we and our working interest partner were obligated to perform certain exploration activities by
November 30, 2017. In the first quarter of 2015, we drilled an unsuccessful exploratory well on the Kindele prospect, which satisfied one of the well
commitments. The agreement requires us to drill or commence drilling three additional exploration wells by the expiration date. A $10.0 million assessment
($5.0 million net to VAALCO) applies to each of the three remaining exploratory well commitments, if any, that have not been drilled before the expiration of
the license. We have evaluated the penalty provisions in the production sharing agreement, and believe that a substantial portion of the penalty has been
satisfied with prior expenditures on the concession. Support for our determination is being presented to governmental authorities and we anticipate further
discussions on this matter. However, due to the uncertainties as to the ultimate outcome, we have accrued a $15 million for the penalty, which represents the
maximum potential amount due under the agreement. An unfavorable result on the resolution of the ultimate amount of the penalty could have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Our business faces many risks. Any of the risks discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-Q and our other SEC filings could have a material impact on our
business, financial position or results of operations. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial
may also impair our business operations.

For a discussion of our potential risks and uncertainties, see the information in Item 1A “Risk Factors” in our 2015 Form 10-K. There have been no material
changes in our risk factors from those described in our 2015 Form 10-K.
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ITE M 6.  EXHIBITS

(a) Exhibits 
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation as amended through May 7, 2014 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

filed on November 10, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).
3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 28,

2015, and incorporated herein by reference).
3.3 First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on December 23, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).
31.1(a) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 certification of Principal Executive Officer.
31.2(a) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 certification of Principal Financial Officer.
32.1(b) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 certification of Principal Executive Officer.
32.2(b) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 certification of Principal Financial Officer.
99.1(a) Stipulation and Order of Dismissal granted October 3, 2016
101.INS(a) XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH(a) XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document.
101.CAL(a) XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF(a) XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB(a) XBRL Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE(a) XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.

(a)  Filed herewith

(b)  Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURE

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

VAALCO ENERGY, INC.
(Registrant)
 

By :  
 
/s/ Elizabeth D. Prochnow

  Elizabeth D. Prochnow
 

 

Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)
(on behalf of the Registrant)

Dated: November 8, 2016
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibits

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation as amended through May 7, 2014 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on November 10, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).

3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 28, 2015,
and incorporated herein by reference).

3.3 First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 23, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

31.1(a) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 certification of Principal Executive Officer.
31.2(a) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 certification of Principal Financial Officer.
32.1(b) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 certification of Principal Executive Officer.
32.2(b) Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 certification of Principal Financial Officer.
99.1(a) Stipulation and Order of Dismissal granted October 3, 2016
101.INS(a) XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH(a) XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document.
101.CAL(a) XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF(a) XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB(a) XBRL Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE(a) XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.

(a)  Filed herewith

(b)  Furnished herewith
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 EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a),

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Cary Bounds, certify that:

(1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of VAALCO Energy, Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 8, 2016 
 

 
 /s/ Cary Bounds
Cary Bounds
Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
 



 EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a),

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Elizabeth D. Prochnow, certify that:

(1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of VAALCO Energy, Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 8, 2016    

 
 /s/ Elizabeth D. Prochnow
Elizabeth D. Prochnow
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 



 EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of VAALCO Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,
2016 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Cary Bounds, Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: November 8, 2016 

 
 
/s/ Cary Bounds
Cary Bounds,  Interim Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Operating Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

 



 EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of VAALCO Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,
2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I,  Elizabeth D. Prochnow,  Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: November 8, 2016

 
 
/s/Elizabeth D. Prochnow 
Elizabeth D. Prochnow, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 



 GRANTED

IN THE COURT OF CHANCERY OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE


DANIEL BUTCHER, )
)

Plaintiff )
v. )

)
ANDREW L. FAWTHROP, STEVEN )
P. GUIDRY, FREDERICK W. )
BRAZELTON, STEVEN J. PULLY, )
JOHN J. MYERS, JR., JAMES B. )
JENNINGS, O. DONALDSON ) C.A. No. 12277-VCL
CHAPOTON, and DON O. )
MCCORMACK, )

)
Defendants)

)
and VAALCO ENERGY, INC., a )
Delaware corporation )

)
Nominal Defendant)

)

STIPULATION AND [PROPOSED] ORDER OF DISMISSAL

WHEREAS, on April 29, 2016, Plaintiff filed a complaint (the “Complaint”) against

Defendants Andrew L. Fawthrop, Steven P. Guidry, Frederick W. Brazelton, Steven J. Pully,

John J. Myers, Jr., James B. Jennings, O. Donaldson Chapoton, and Don O. McCormack, as

officers and members of the board of

  
 

 



directors of Nominal Defendant VAALCO Energy, Inc. (“VAALCO” or the “Company”)

(collectively, “Defendants”);

WHEREAS, the Complaint alleged, that in connection with the adoption of

(i) a stockholder rights agreement (the “Rights Agreement”), (ii) an employment agreement

with the then-CEO Steven P. Guidry containing certain change-in-control severance benefits

(the “Guidry Agreement”), and (iii) an employment agreement with the then-CFO Don O.

McCormack containing similar change-in-control severance benefits (the “McCormack

Agreement”), the members of the Company’s Board breached their fiduciary duties;

WHEREAS, the Complaint sought, among other things, a declaration from the Court that

the (i) Rights Agreement, (ii) the Guidry Agreement, and (iii) the McCormack Agreement were

invalid and unenforceable;

WHEREAS, on or about December 22, 2015, the Company terminated the Rights

Agreement;

WHEREAS, Don O. McCormack announced his resignation on May 6, 2016, effective

June 2, 2016;

WHEREAS, Steven P. Guidry announced his resignation on July 28, 2016, effective

September 1, 2016;

WHEREAS, as a result of the termination of the Rights Agreement and the resignations

of Guidry and McCormack, Plaintiff and Defendants agree that the claims in the Complaint are

moot;

 



WHEREAS, the Company and its insurer agreed, in the exercise of business judgment,

to pay Plaintiff’s counsel $25,000 in attorneys’ fees, which amount the Company expects the

insurer will pay on its behalf;

WHEREAS, Plaintiff’s counsel may disburse up to $1,000 of the $25,000 in attorneys’

fees as they see fit to reimburse Plaintiff for expenses incurred directly by the Plaintiff in

connection with the prosecution of this litigation;

WHEREAS, Defendants deny any allegations of Plaintiff through Plaintiff’s counsel that

Defendants engaged in wrongdoing in any way, and the Company states that the Company has

agreed to settle Plaintiff’s application for an award of attorneys’ fees due to the costs

associated with prosecuting Defendants’ motion to dismiss and the defense of that application,

as well as the associated litigation risk;

WHEREAS, the Court has not passed on the amount of the fee;

NOW, THEREFORE, upon consent of the parties and subject to the approval of the

Court;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED this 3rd day of October, 2016, pursuant to Court of

Chancery Rule 23(e) that:

1.  This Action is dismissed as moot with prejudice as to Plaintiff and without

prejudice as to any other Company stockholder.

2.  The Company shall file this Stipulation and Order of Dismissal as an attachment

to its next Form 10-Q following the entry of this Stipulation and Order

 



of Dismissal (“Order”).  Such filing constitutes adequate notice for purposes of Rule 23(e)

(the “Notice”).

3.  The Company shall file with the Court an affidavit that the Notice has been made

(the “Affidavit”) in accordance with paragraph 1 no later than three (3) calendar days after the

Notice is publicly filed.

4.  Upon the filing of the Affidavit:

a. The Register in Chancery is directed to close this Action on the docket; and

b. The Court will no longer retain any jurisdiction over this Action.

5.  The Company through its insurer shall pay to Plaintiff’s counsel fees and

expenses in the amount of $25,000 no later than ten (10) calendar days after the Notice is

publicly filed, and neither Plaintiff nor Plaintiff’s counsel shall seek any additional fees,

expenses, or costs from Defendants or their insurer in connection with the Action.

 



OF COUNSEL:
 
THE WAGNER FIRM
Avi Wagner
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100
Los Angeles, California 90067
(310) 491-7949
 
 
 
 
GLANCY PRONGAY &
MURRAY LLP
Robert V. Prongay
Kara M. Wolke
Alexa Mullarky
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100
Los Angeles, California 90067
(310) 201-9150

 

MONTGOMERY McCRACKEN
WALKER & RHOADS, LLP
 
  /s/ Lisa Zwally Brown
Sidney Liebesman (No. 3702)
Lisa Zwally Brown (No. 4328)
1105 N. Market St., Suite 1500
Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 504-7800
 
Attorneys for Daniel Butcher

 

 
 
OF COUNSEL:
 
Michael C. Holmes
George M. Padis
VINSON & ELKINS LLP
Trammel Crow Center
2001 Ross Avenue, Suite 3700
Dallas, Texas 75201-2975
(214) 220-7700

 

YOUNG CONAWAY STARGATT
& TAYLOR, LLP
 
  /s/ James M. Yoch, Jr.  
Rolin P. Bissell (No. 4478)
Kathaleen S. McCormick (No. 4579)
James M. Yoch, Jr. (No. 5251)
Rodney Square
1000 North King Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 571-6600
 
 
Attorneys for Defendants

Dated: September 30, 2016

 



SO ORDERED this 3rd day of October, 2016.

/s/ J. Travis Laster__________
Vice Chancellor J. Travis Laster
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